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Independent Auditors” Report
1o the Members of Triveni Energy Systems Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Triveni Energy
systems Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31,
2017, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended
aud a summary of the significant accounting  policies and other explanatory
information (herein after referrid to as “Ind AS financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
ol the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance incfuding other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section
133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

1'his responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting vecords in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other regularities; selection and
apptication of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates thet are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adeqate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our respongibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based
oy our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing

standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
lsions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant
to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of
affairs (financial position) of the Company as at March 31, 2017, and its loss (financial
performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we

give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3
and 4 of the order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b} in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

{c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flows and

the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
/7" Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant
... rule issued thereunder;




(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(fy with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate report in “ Annexure B”; and

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its
financial position;

if) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv) The Company has provided requisite disclosures in its Ind AS financial
statements as to holding as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during
the period from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016 and these are in
accordance with the books of accounts maintained by the Company. Refer
Note 25 to the Ind AS financial statements.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111N

e

(Sudhir Mallick)
Partner

Membership No. 80051

Place: Noida (U.l.)
Date : May §y , 2017




Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date under the
heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” to the members of

Triveni Energy Systems Limited on the Ind AS financial statements as of and for the year
ended on March 31, 2017.

1. a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets included under Investment property
in Note no. 2 to the financial statements,

b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year. As
explained to us, no discrepancy was noticed on such verification as compared to the
book records. In our opinion the frequency of verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the company and nature of its activities.

¢) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
examination of title deed and other relevant records provided to us evidencing the
title, we report that the title deed of the immovable property is held in the name of
the company.

2. Since the Company does not have any inventories of finished goods, stores, spare parts
& raw materials, hence the provisions of clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditors Report} Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

3. According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion the
Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clauses (iil) (a), (iii) (b) & (iii) (c) of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the
Company for the current year.

4. According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion the
Company has not advanced any loan, investment, guarantee or security to any person
as specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
provisions of clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2016 are not applicable to the Company for the current year.

5. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the provisions of
sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules framed there under during the year.

6,{%&5 per the information & explanation given to us, the Company is not required to
Indintain cost record under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the
}:,}pir@\}isions of clause 3(vi) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 is not
appticable to the Company.




(@) The Company is regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax,
Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and
any other statutory dues to the extent applicable to it. According to the information
and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts in respect of statutory dues
were in arrears as at March 31, 2017 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

(b)According to the information and explanation given to us there were no dues of
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added

Tax and other statutory dues, which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

8. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
borrowed any amount from financial institution, bank, government or debenture
holder, therefore, the question of default in repayment of the dues does not arise.

9. According to the information and explanation given to us, there was no money raised

by way of initial public offer or further public offer nor any term loan was taken by the
Company during the year.

10. According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the Company or

on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the
course of our audit.

11. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not paid
any managerial remuneration during the year.

12.In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the
Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable.

13.According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, there were no transactions with the related
parties during the year within the meaning of sections 177 and 188 of the Act. Details of
transactions with the related parties have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14. According to the information and explanations give to us, the company has not made

preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertibie
debenture during the year,

15. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, clause
(xv) of parag‘}:ap‘llﬂ3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable.

; WK




16.The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act 1934.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111N

)

{Sudhir Mallick)
Partner

Place: Noida (U.P.) |
Date : May 1] , 2017




Annexure B to Independent Auditors” Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Triveni Energy
Systems Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of
the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting

records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
ﬁk@%\#?vide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
“,%..
A




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111IN

[/

(Sudhir Mallick})
Partner
Membership No. 80051

Place: Noida (U.P.)
Date : Mcqy H}-lcﬁ-




TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Palanee Bheet as at Morch 31 L2y

FAllgmonnic i S dlnainds onlens oflivraine lafed}

Non-current assets
Investment property 2 36,928.08 36,928.08 -
ingome {ax assels (net) 3 313 3.13 313
Other non-current assets 4 - - 20,000.00
Total non-current assets 36,931.21 36,931.21 20,003.13
Current assets
Financial assels
i.  Cash and cash equivalents 5 (a} 106.28 93.38 108,16
ii. Bank bajances other than cash and cash equivalents 54{b) 54.23 150.00 -
ili. Other financial assets 6 2.65 8.04. -
Total curremt agsets 157.16 251.42 10510
Total assels 37,088.37 37,182,63 20,108,23
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equily share capital 7 20,500.00 24,500.00 20,500.00
Qther equitly 8 (8431.95 {715.24} {582.26)
Total equity 19,658.05 19,7684.76 19,917.74
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings g 450,00 450.00 100,00
ii. trade payables 10 11.56 11.45 81.84
iii. Other financial liabilities 11 16,968.82 16,936.42 2,65
Olher current labilities 12 - - 6.00
Total current liabilities _ 17,430.32 17,397.87 190.49
Total liabilities 17,430.32 17,397.87 190.49
Total equity and liabilities 37,088.37 37,182,63 20,108.23

The accompanying notes 1 to 28 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For ).C.Bhalla & Company
Jhartered Accountants
Firm's registration numbgh ; 001111N

s jnd on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Energy Systems Limited

/A

Sudhir Maklick
Partner
Membership Ne. 80051

Place : Noida (U.P.) wj:);' Neo 06002 g%g 3. &) é ? %ﬁﬁg%ﬁé {.”g

Suresh Taneja Atul Agarwa
Director Director




TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Statenwnt of profit and loss for the year onded March 31, 2017

(A neaaia i O thoraan s pitdess oy

stalid:

Other income ) ) 13 ) 7.30 804
Tatal income 7.30 8.04
Lxpenses

Finance costs 14 36,00 27.36
Othoer expensos 15 28.07 113,60
Total expenses _ _ 134.0 141.02
Loss before tax {126.71) {132.98)
‘Tax expense 1a - -
Logs for the year {126.71) {132.98)

Other comprehensive income

A D) Hems that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss
A (H) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit & loss -

B (i} Mems that may be reclassified to profit or loss
B (i} Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit & loss - -

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -

Total comprehensive income for the year {126.71) ~ {132.98)

Earnings/(luss) per equity share of T1 each

Basic 17 0.01) {0.01)
Diluted ) 17 (0.01) (0.03)

The accompanying notes 1 to 28 (orm an inlegral part of the (inancial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For ].C.Bhalla & Company ForaRd on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Energy Systems Limited
Chartered Accountants \
Firm's registration numbgdy : 0021T1IN

— 1
Sudhir Mallick
Partner

Membership No. 80051

tul Agarwal
l? rector Director




TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Staternent of chinges i egquity Tor the year ended Mavch 31, 2017

(A amounts i 7 thonsaints, sadeee olievetae slafed)

A, Tquity share capital

Equity shares of ¥ T cach isstied, subscribed and fully paid up

As at 't April 2015 20,500.00
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31 March 2016 20,500.00
Changes in equity share capital _ -
As at 31 March 2017 20,500.00

B. Other equity

Balance as at 1 ri! 20056 ' B.
Loss for the year (132.98) (132.98)
Other comprehensive income, net of income ax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year {132.98) (132.98)
Balance as at 31 March 2016 T 1509 ' (715.24)
Loss for the year (126.71) (126.71)
Other comprehensive income, net of income fax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (126.71) . (126.71)
Balance as at 31 March 2017 (841.95) (841.95)

The accompanying notes 1 to 28 form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company R
Chartered Accountants
irm's registration numper : 001 111N

I

and on behalf of the Beard of Directors of Triveni Energy Systems Limited

Sudhir Mallick
Partner
Membership No. 80057

Sliresh Taneja Atul Agarwal

irector Director

LA . - G TP,
“AIAN D ooo IELL &% T EEY




TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Slateraent of cashy Dows for the year arded March 31, 2007

(AN wpwamits in 3 thereanuds, ioaless aifwroine stided)

Cash flows from operating activities
L.oss before tax (126,71} {132.98)
Adjustments for
Interest income {7.30) (8.04)
Finance costs 36.00 27.36
Woaorking capital adjusiments :
Change in trade payables 0.05 (70.39}
Change in other labilities - (6.00)
Cash used in operations (97.96) (190.05)
Income tax paid - -
Net cash outflow from operating activities _ (97.96) {190.05)
Cash flows from investing activifies
Purchase of investment properties - (13.20)
Fixed deposits with banks 95.77 (150.08)
Interest received 12.69 -
Net cash inflow/f{outflow) from investing activities 108.46 (163.26)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from short term borrowings - 450.00
Repayment of short term borrowings - (100.00)
Interest paid (3.60) 8.41)
Net cash inflow/(outfiow) from financing activities (3.60) 341,59
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 6.90 (11.72)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 5 (a)) 93.38 105.10
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 5 (a)) 100.28 93,38
The accompanying notes T to 28 form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For J.C.Bhalla & Company and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Energy Systems Limitec

Chartered Accountants
irm's registration nughber : 601111N
Sudhir Mallick

e/
Partner

Membership No, 80051

Aful Agarwal
Director

O 68759

Place : Noida (U.P)}
Date : ¥y 1y do1°L
ARUE:




TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Corporate information
Triveni Energy Systems Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and

domiciled in India. The Holding Company, Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited owns 100% of

equity share capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at 8 floor, iixpress
Trade Towers, 1516, Sector 16A, Noida, Uttar Pradesh- 20130T.

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these

financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

(@)

Basis of preparation and presentation

(®

Compliance with ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (ind

AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) |Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements up to year ended 31 March 2016 were prepared in accordance with the

accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as
amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAF).

These financial statements are the first financial statements of the Company under Ind AS, The
date of transition to Ind AS is T April 2015, Refer note 26 for the details of first-time adoption
exemptions availed by the Company and an explanation of transition from previous GAAP to
Ind AS.

Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenue is from interest income. Interest income from a financial asset is recognised

when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income

can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal

outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts

estimated future cash receipts through the expecled life of the financial asset lo that asset's net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying

asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for

its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time

to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Jther borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.




TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

{(d) Income tax

(e)

(f)

The Income tax liability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1901.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewad al
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no Jonger probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or foss, excepl
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively,

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as
investment property. Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the
asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

Investment properties are deprecialed using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as stated in Schedule Il along with residual values of 5%.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is
measured at the present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation,

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.




TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(g) Financial assels
(f) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value (cither through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
+ those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

{ii} Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assels
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measuremaent
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

»  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

*  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the asscts’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOC].

* Fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL): Assels that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVTOQCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(iif) Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCIT debt instruments.

{iv) Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when
* the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
* retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.




TRIVENI ENERGY SYSTEMS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(h) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

{0

(i)

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilitics
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial Habilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:
+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
+ those measured at amortised cost,

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting pertods.

Measurement

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transaction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial liability at its fair value net of, in the
case of a financial liability not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs of financial
liability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or foss.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on the classification of financial
Habilities. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial
labilities:

*  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FVIPL
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial
ltabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

*  Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial labilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.
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{(iii} Derecognition
Equity instruments
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legaily enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of defauit, insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty.
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Note 18: Related party transactions

(i} Related parties where controf exists
(a) Triveni Engincering & Industries Limited (Holding Company} (TEIL)

(ii) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place:
(a) Holding company

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL)
(b} Fellow Subsidiaries

Triveni Enferlainment Limited (TENL)

Triveni Sugar Limited (TSL)

(isi} Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances:

Financial year olding Company eecnpuan—— Total .
Nature of transactions with Related Parties
Service charges expense F-Mar-17 68.95 - - 68.95
31-Mar-16 68.36 - - 68,36
Interest expense 31-Mar-17 - 36.00 - 36,00
31-Mar-16 - 24.00 3.03 27.03
Investment in property 31-Mar-17 - - - -
31-Mar-16 36,914.82 - - 36,914.82
Reimbursemnent of expenses 31-Mar-17 - - - -
31-Mar-16 13.26 - - 13.26
L.oan taken 31-Mar-17 - - " -
31-Mar-16 - 450.00 - 450.00
Outstanding balances
Receivable 31-Mar-17 - - - -
31-Mar-16 " - - -
01-Apr-15 20,000.00 - - 20,000.00
Payable 31-Mar-17 16,914.82 504.00 - 17,418.82
31-Mar-16 16,914.82 471.60 - 17,386.42
01-Apr-15 6142 - 102.64 164.06

{iv) Terms & conditions:

The transactions with refated parties, including service charges/ interest expense, are made on terms which are at arm's length after taking
into consideration market considerations, external benchimarks and adjustment thereof. The outstanding balances at the year-end arce
unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.
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J. C. BHALLA & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

BRANCH OFFICE : B-5, SECTOR-6, NOIDA - 201301 (U.i2)
TEL. 1 91 - 120 - 4241000, FAX ' 91 - 11 - 4241007
E-MAIL : taxald@vsni.com

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of Triveni Engineering Limited

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Triveni
Engineering Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the balance sheet as at
March 31, 2017, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income}, the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (herein after referred to as “Ind AS financial statements”)

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
. - y .
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accountin g principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; seiection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenatce of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements
based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and aud:ting
_standards and matters which are required to be included in the audii report under




We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control
relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made

by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Tnd
AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required
by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the
state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at March 31, 2017, and its loss
(financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the
Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the
paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to

the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flows
and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;




(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with
relevant rule issued thereunder;

() on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the

directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2017 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in “ Annexure B”; and

(8) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact
its financial position;

if) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iif) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv) The Company neither held nor dealt in specified bank note during the
period from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016 and the same is in
accordance with the books of accounts maintained by the Company. Refer
Note 25 to the Ind AS financial statements.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111N

s

udhir Mallick) AT
Partner oy
Membership No. 80051

Place: Noida (U.P.)
Date : {viay ia 2017




Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date under the
heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” to the members of
Triveni Engineering Limited on the Ind AS financial statements as of and for the year
ended on March 31, 2017.

1.

- £ nr.(’

~ TN
A\O \the provisions of clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)

s M;@g rder, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets included under Investment
property in Note no. 2 to the financial statements.

b} Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year.
As explained to us, no discrepancy was noticed on such verification as compared
to the book records. In our opinion the frequency of verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the company and nature of its activities.

¢) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
examination of title deed and other relevant records provided to us evidencing
the title, we report that the title deed of the immovable property is held in the
name of the company.

Since the Company does not have any inventories of finished goods, stores, spare
parts & raw materials, the provisions of clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion the
Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, provisions of clauses (jii)
(a), (iii) (b) & (iii) (c) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016
are not applicable to the Company for the current year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion the
Company has not advanced any loan, investment, guarantee or security to any
person as specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, provisions of clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company for the current year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the provisions of
sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules framed there under during the year.

As per the information & explanation given to us, the Company is not required to
maintain cost record under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,




7. (a) The Company is regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, BEmployees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues to the extent applicable to it.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts in respect of statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2017 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us there were no dues of
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value
Added Tax and other statutory dues, which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute.

8. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
borrowed any amount from financial institution, bank, government or debenture
holder, therefore, the question of default in repayment of the dues does not arise.

9. According to the information and explanation given to us, there was no money
raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer nor any term loan was
taken by the Company during the year.

10. According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the Company

or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during
the course of our audit.

11. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not paid
any managerial remuneration during the year.

12.In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, provisions of clause (xii) of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

13. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, there were no transactions with the
related parties during the year within the meaning of sections 177 and 188 of the Act.
Details of transactions with the related parties have been disclosed in the Ind AS
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14. According to the information and explanations give to us, the company has not
made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debenture during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xiv) of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

15. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
provisions of clause {(xv) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order,
2016 are not applicable.




16.The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act 1934.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111IN

[}

(Stdhir Mallick)
Partner

Membership No. 80051
Place: Noida (U.P.)
Date : Mayﬂ/Qo\T}.

Y




Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Triveni
Engineering Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company, and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. JO1111N

B

(Rudhir Mallick)
Partner

Membership No. 80051
Place: Noida (U.P.)

Date : May, IRCIEY




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Patarce Sheel as ol Mareh 31, 2017

Vi izt in Y fhousands mgless olhierisiae shated

ASBETS
Non-current assels

Investment property yi 43,593.78 43,593.78 -
Income fax assets {net) 3 17.18 17.18 1718
Other non-current assets 4 - - 20,000.00
Tolal non-current assets 43,610.96 43,610.96 20,017.18
Current assets
Financial assels
o Cash and cash equivalents 5 (a) 91.48 84.59 11119
ii.  Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 5 (b} 54.23 150.00 -
iif, Other financial assets 6 2.08 8.11 -
Total current assets 148.39 242,70 111,19
Total assets 43,759.35 43,853.66 20,128.37
BQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Bquity
Equity share capital 7 20,500.00 20,500.00 20,500.00
Other equity 8 {2,212.81% (2,086.05) (1,938,25)
Total equity 18,287.19 18,413.95 18,561.75
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
. Borrowings 9 450.00 450.00 100,00
i, Trade payables 16 11.50 11.45 81.84
iii.  Other financial iabitities 11 25,010.66 24,978.26 1,378.78
Other current Habilities i2 - - 6.00
‘Fotal current liabilities 25,472.16 25,439.71 1,560.62
Tolal liabilities 2547216 25,439.71 1,566.62!
Total equity and liabilities 43,759,35 43,853.66 20,128.37

The accompanying notes 1 to 28 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per cur report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants

Firn's registration nur ir :0071111IN
=

SudhirMallick
Pariner
Membership No. 80051

Place : Noida (U.P)
Date : Moy, {4 <
4 1/ o1t

For gnd on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Engineering Limited

Debajit Bagehi
Directar

Oie? §3361LLE

Atul Agarwal
Director

0b§15769




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

D N iy i

Sttt of prealit and Toss for the vear ended Maoech 31, 2007

Other income 13 7.25 8.11
Total income 7.25 8,11
Expenses

Finance cosls 14 36.00 27.306
Other expenses 15 98,01 128,54
Total expenses 134.01 155.90
Loss before tax {126.76) {147.79)
Tax expense 16 - -
Loss for the year {126.76) {147.79)
Other comprehensive income

Aiy Htems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -

A (i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassilied to profit & loss -

B () Jtems that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
B3 (ii) Income lax relating {o items that may be reclassified to profit & loss -

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - o
Total comprehensive income for the year (126.76) {147.79)
Earnings/{loss) per equity share of ¥ 1 each

Basic 17 {0.01) (0.01)
Ditated 17 (001} ©.01)

The accompanying notes 1 to 28 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For }.C.Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountan
Firm's registration nuhiter : 061111N

‘ iy
s dhiW

Partner
Membership No. 80051/ e

Place : Noida (ULP.)

Date : Md}{ ‘LQGI“}:“[ .

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Engineering Limited

/

Debajit Bagchi
Directdr

Dird o LEB3LE

Atul Agarwal
Director

66815164




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

s i egquily for the vear ended Mareh 31, 2007

i b FTEr il Do on st
firo et aodfe olfleraae wliteid )

Stifement of chinm

AFD e s
[ R R

A, Equity share capital

Equity shares of ¥1 each issued, subscribedand fully paid up

Asatl April 2015 20,500.00
Changes in equity share capita) -
As at 31 March 2016 _ _ 20,500,060
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31 March 2017 20,500.00

B. Other equity

Balance as at 1 April 2015 {1,938.25) (1,938.25)
Loss for the year (147.80} (147.80)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total _cdmprehensi_ve income for the year (147.80) (147.80}
Balance as at 31 March 2016 (2,086.05) {2,086.05)
Loss for the year (126.76) {126.76)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - "
Total comprehensive income for the year _ (126.76) {126.76)
Balance as at 31 March 2017 (2,212.81) (2,212.81)

The accompanying notes 1 1o 28 form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For ].C.Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountan
Firm's registration nu rer :0011TIN

4
S ir Mallick

Partner
Membership No. 80051

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Engineering Limited

Atul Agarwal
Director

ohET 8Eq
Place : Noida (U.P)

Date : May i LQmﬁr ,




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Statement of cash flows for the year endoed March 31, 2007

(Al gt  Hrowsasnds, unless oflieriise daied}

Cash flow from opearting activities

Loss before tax (126.76) (147,79
Adjustments for
Interest income (7.25) (8.11)
Finance costs 36.00 27.36
Working capital adjustments :
Change in trade payables 0.05 (70.3%
Change in other financial liabifities - (6.00)
Cash used in operations {97.96) {204.93)

Income tax paid

Net cash outflow from operating activities (97.96) (204.93)

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of investment properties - (13.26)
Fixed deposits with banks 95.77 (150.00)
Interest received 12.68 -
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from investing activities 108.45 (163.26}

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from short term borrowings

- 450.00

Repayment of short term borrowings - (100.00)
Interest paid : (3.60) (8.40)
Net cash flow from / {used in} financing activities (3.60 341.60
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 6.89 (26.59)
Cash and cash equivalenis at the beginning of the year (refer note 5 (a)) 84,59 111.19
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {refer note 5 (a)) 91.48 84,60
The accompanying notes 1 to 28 form an integral part of the financial slatements
As per our report of even date attached
Yor J.C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Engineering Limitec
Chartered Accounfants
Firm's registration 1meber : 0011 /
Sudhir Mallick Debajit Bagchi Atul Agarwal
Partner ] b Directey Director
Membership No. 80061, ¢ £ M

embership No. s 4 oy G

) grex 025 Etika o681 b

Place : Noida (U.P.) \\'*
Date : Moy | %,
ARUE




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Corporate information
Triveni Engineering Limited (“the Company”} is a company limited by shares, incorporated and

domiciled in India. The Holding Company, Triveni Lngineering & Industries Limited owns 100% of

equity share capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at 8 floor, Express
Trade Towers, 15-16, Sector 16A, Noida, Uttar Pradesh- 201301,

Note 1: Significant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these

financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, uniess

otherwise stated.

(a)

(b)

()

Basis of preparation and presentation

(f}y Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) {Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015} and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements up to year ended 31 March 2016 were prepared in accordance with the
accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as
amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP).

These financial statements are the first financial statements of the Company under [nd A5, The
date of transition to Ind AS is T April 2015. Refer note 26 for the details of first-time adoption
exemptions availed by the Company and an explanation of transition from previous GAAP 1o
Ind AS.

(ii) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenue is from interest income. Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated fufure cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's nel
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a gqualifying,
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their infended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

‘:‘mﬁ %‘x
- éf\




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes to the {inancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(d)

(e)

(f)

Income tax

The Income tax liability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961
Deferred tax assets and labilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising belween the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewaed al
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or foss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as
investment properly. Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs, Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 1o the
asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as stated in Schedule 1 along with residual values of 5%.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to seitle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is
measured at the present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(g) Financial assets

(B

(ifi)

(iv)

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
* those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial agscts
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial asscis
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset, There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

*  Amortised cost: Assels that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debl investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

*  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the asscts’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCL

+ Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do nol meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVTOCT are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when
* the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
* retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(h) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

{B)

(i)

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilitics
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assels of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:
» those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
+ those measured at amortised cost.

Financial Habilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial Hability is held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.

Measurement

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transaction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial lability at its fair value net of, in the
case of a financial liability not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs of financial
liability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on the classification of financial
liabilities. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial
liabilities:

+  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial
labilities at FVTIPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

»  Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item,




TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(iii} Derecognition
Equity instruments
Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial Hlability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.
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TRIVENI ENGINEERING LIMITED

AN

Sates Lo e ngseclal statements for the year endoed Mareh 31, 2007
HEatH!

fatlamonnts o Y thonsands, miless othericise siated }

Note 18; Related party transactions

(i} Related parties where control exists
(a) Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding Company) (TEIL)

(i} Related parties with whom transactions have taken place
{a) Holding company
Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited {TEIL}
(b} Fellow Subsidiaries
Triveni Entertainment Limited (TENL)
Triveni Sugar Limited (TSL)

(iit) Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances:

Holding Company " Fellow Subsidiaries

“Financial year . Tﬂh’_ﬁ :

Nature of transactions with Related Parties
Service charges expense 31-Mar-17 68.95 “ - 68.95
31-Mar-16 68.36 - “ 68.36
Interest expense 31-Mar-17 - 36.00 - 36.00
31-Mar-16 - 24.00 3.03 27.03
hhwvestment in property 3i-Mar-17 - - - "
31-Mar-16 43,580.52 - - 43,580.52
Reimbursement of expenses 31-Mar-17 - - - -
31-Mar-16 13.26 - - 13.26
Loan taken 31-Mar-17 - - - -
31-Mar-16 - 450.00 - 450.00
Outstanding balances
Receivable 31-Mar-17 - - - -
31-Mar-16 - - - -
01-Apr-i5 20,000.00 - - 20,000.00
Payable 31-Mar-17 24,956.66 504.00 - 25,460.66
31-Mar-16 24,956.60 471.60 - 25,428.26
01-Apr-15 1,437.55 - 102.64 1,540.19

{iv}) Terms & conditions:

The transactions with related parties, including service charges/ interest expense, are made on terms which are at arm’s length after taking

into consideration market considerations, external benchmarks and adjustment thereof. The outstanding balances at the year-end are
unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.
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J. C. BHALLA 8 CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

BRANCH OFFICE : B-5, SECTOR-6, NOIDA - 201301 (U.R,)
TEL.: 91 - 120 - 4241000, FAX : 91 - 11 - 4241007
£-MAIL : taxald@vsnl.com

Independent Auditors” Report
‘to the Members of Triveni Industries Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Triveni Industries
Limited ('the Company’), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2017, the
statement of profit and Joss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of
cash flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and a
stunmary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(herein after referred to as “Ind AS financial statements™)

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 34(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financiai
& H
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes 1n equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section
&
133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates thet ave
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based
on cur audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
dsions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant
to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of
affairs (financial position) of the Company as at March 31, 2017, and its loss (financial
performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give
in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of
the order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

{(c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flows and
the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account;

*(d)-.in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
 Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant
- rule issued thereunder;




()

()

(g}

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate report in “ Annexure B”; and

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in

our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its
financial position;

ii) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv) The Company neither held nor dealt in specified bank notes during the period
the November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016 & the same is in accordance with
the books of accounts maintained by the Company. Refer Note 18 to the Ind
AS financial statements.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111N

.

(Sudhir Mallick)
Partner

Membership No. 80051

Place: Noida (U.P.)
Date : May b R0,




Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date under the
heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” to the members of

Triveni Industries Limited on the Ind AS financial statements as of and for the year ended
on March 31, 2017.

1.

~

Since the Company does not have any fixed assets with it, the provisions of clauses (i)

to (iii) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not
applicable to the Company.

Since the Company does not have any inventories of finished goods, stores, spare parts
& raw materials, the provisions of clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors
Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion the
Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses (iii) (a), (iii) (b) &
(iif) (c) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not
applicable to the Company for the current year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion the
Company has not advanced any loan, investment, guarantee or security to any person
as specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2016 are not applicable to the Company for the current year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the provisions of
sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules framed there under during the year.

As per the information & explanation given to us, the Company is not required to
maintain cost record under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause (vi) of Para 3 of the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are
not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing with the appropriate
authorities undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees” State
Insurance, Income tax, Sales Tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues to the extent applicable to it.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
in respect of statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2017 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

%wxi £ \(j\; According to the information and explanation given to us there were no dues of

‘ .‘ﬁ’gri nff }Q

~F L Income Tax, Sales T ax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added




8. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
borrowed any amount from financial institution, bank, government or debenture
holder, therefore, the question of default in repayment of the dues does not arise.

9. According to the information and explanation given to us, there was no money raised
by way of initial public offer or further public offer nor any term loan was taken by the
Company during the year.

10. According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the Company or

on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the
course of our audit.

11. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not paid
any managerial remuneration during the year.

12.1n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xii) of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

13. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, there were no transactions with the related
parties during the year within the meaning of sections 177 and 188 of the Act. Details of
transactions with the related parties have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14. According to the information and explanations give to us, the company has not made
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debenture during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of
the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.

15. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the

provisions of clause (xv) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order,
2016 are not applicable.

16.The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act 1934.

For ]J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111N

.y

(Sudhir Mallick)
Partner

Membership No. 80051
Place: Noida (U.P.)
Date : Mayisf&e}“{.




Annexure B to Independent Auditors” Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Triveni
Industries Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of
the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting

records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10} of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

o) ide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
o, 6vér fipancial reporting.
N ‘t\“g




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111N

/A
Sudhir Mallick)
Partner
Membership No. 80051

Place: Noida (U.P.)
Date : May, H)%{:}’i“‘i i




TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Bodance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

P . 7 4 . . - Wi # . . Iy
i et e T eresannds diikees Giherieie staied

Current assets
Financial assels

i, Cashand cash equivalents 2 50.93 21248
Total current assets 50,93 212.48
Total assets _ 50.93 212.48

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity share capital 3 50.00 50.60
Othey equily 4 (228.39) (92.39)
Total equity (178.39 {42.39)
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i, Borrowings 5 200.00 200.00
ii. Trade payables G 1150 51.45
i3, Othey financial babilities 7 17.82 3.42
Total current liabilities 229,32 254.87
Total liabilities 229.32 254.87
Total equity and Liabilities _ 50.93 212.48
The accompanying notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For].C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Industries Limite

Charlered Accountants

Firm's registration numbgy ; 001111N 4 /

, /e
Sudhir Mallick Satvinder Singh Walia Deblajit Bagchi
Partner Director Direftor
Membership No, 86051

Place : Noida (U.I?)
Date : MG}# “’QO‘,&.'.




TRIVENT INDUSTRIES LIMITED

statement of profit and loss for the vear ended Mareh 31, 2017

Al ie N ot e H 1 e N i
AR s i ilisrsaied randves atherieiae shatedd

Income

Expenses
Finance costs
Qther expenses

1619
119,81

3.42
88.97

Total expenses

136.00

92,39

Loss before tax

{136.00)

(92.39)

Tax expense

10

Loss for the year

(136.00)

{92.39)

Other comprehensive income

A (i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profif or loss

B (i) items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

A (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit & loss

B (ii) Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit & loss

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprebensive income for the year

{136.00)

(92.39)

Larnings/(loss) per equity share of ¥1 each
Basic
Diluted

13
11

2.72)
(2.72)

(2.66)
(2.66)

The accompanying notes T to 23 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants

irm's registration namber : 0011T1IN

Sudhir Mallick
Partner
Membership No. 80051

b
Place : Noida (U.P.) :D}'\fg
Date :Ma) N,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Industries Limit

f

Satvinder Singh Walia
Director

00294589

Debayit Bagchi

Directpr

©25

MWKy




TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Statement of clanges o equily Tor the vear ended March 31, 2017

e bty S Haeaad s nding o flier i

A. Equity share capital

Equity shares of T 1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

At the beginnnig of the period

Issued during the period 50,00
As at 31 March 2016 50,00
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31 March 2017 50,00

B. Other equity

Balance at the beginning of the period - -
Loss for the period (92.39) (92.39)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the period {92.39) (92.39)
Balance as at 31 March 2016 (92;39) (92.39)
Loss for the year {136.00) {136.00)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 136.00) {1 36.0b)
Balance as at 31 March 2017 (228.39) (228.39)

The accompanying notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants
Ffr's registration nuntber : 001111N

‘ e
Sudhir Matllick

Partner

Membership Ne, 80051

Place : Noida (U.P.) . Q::E}f M

Date :quqi Qﬁ}/’"‘” ;o
’ yo

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Industries Limited

Satvinder Singh Walia
Director

00296599

Debajit Bagchi

D25461 320
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TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Statement of cash flows for the yeay ended March 31, 2017

CA wponts T X ihonsands, adoss offeraeise sinded)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax (136.00) {92.39)

Adjustments for

Finance costs 1619 3.42
Working capital adjustments :

Change in trade payables (39.95) 51.45
Cash used in operations (159.76) (37.52)

Income tax paid

Net cash outflow from operating activities o (159.76) | (37,52)

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issues of shares - 50.00
Proceeds from short term borrowings - 200.00
Interest paid (1.79) -
Net cash .i.nf!o.w/(outﬂow) from financing activities {(1.79) 250.00
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (161.55) 21248
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 2) 21248 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 2) 50.93 21248

The accompanying notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Industries Limitec
Chartered Accountants

Bjrm's registration number : 001111N /v7
/) ‘

Ik
Sudhir Mallick Satvinder Singh Walia Debajit Bagchi
Partner Director Director

Membership No. 80051 ey e N
e DIN O 0294589 0 256Y226

Place : Noida (UP) "% - °
Dat :MC\ !
ate Al Qor;‘.




TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Corporate information
Triveni Industries Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled

in India. The Holding Company, Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited owns 100% of equity sharce
capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at Deoband, Districl-
Saharanpur, Uttar Pradesh- 247554,

Note 1: Significant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these

financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated,

(a)

(©)

Basis of preparation and presentation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements up to year ended 31 March 2016 were prepared in accordance with the
accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as
amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP),

These financial statements are the first financial statements of the Company under Ind AS. The
date of transition to Ind AS is 1 April 2015. Refer note 20 for the details of first-time adoption
exemptions availed by the Company and an explanation of transition from previous GAAP Lo

Ind AS.

(i) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the peried of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax

The Income tax liability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.




TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(d)

(e}

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required o scttfe the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertaintics
surrounding the obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is
measured at the present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial assets
(i) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categorics:
+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
* those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

(ii) Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs thal arc
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss,

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

* Amortised cost: Assets that are held for colleclion of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.




TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

«  Fair value through other comprehensive income (EVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCL

»  Fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(iif) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Insirumenis, the Company applies expected credit loss
(FCL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment foss associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments,

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when
+ the Company has transferred the rights to reccive cash flows from the financial asset; or
* retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, bul assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

(f) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(i}

(1)

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either {inancial liabilitics
or as equily in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measuremenl‘categories:
» those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
» those measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.

Measurement

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transaction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial liability at its fair value net of, in the
case of a financial liability not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs of financial
liability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.




TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Subsequent measurement of financial labilities depends on the classification of financial
Habilities, There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial
liabilities:

* Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classilied as at FVTPL
when the financial Hability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Finarcial
liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss,

+  Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not desighated as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounls of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is ot
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

(iit) Derecognition
Equity instruments
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit ar loss.

(g) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously, The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.
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TRIVENI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

MNedos W the financie! statements {or the year endoed Mavch 31, 2017

AN Groeds i horeacnds, iless ofleraoise staled)
Note 12: Related party transactions

(i) Related parties where control exists
{a) Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding Company) (TEIL)

(ii) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place
{a) Holding company

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL)
(b} Fellow Subsidiary
Triveni Entertainment Limited (TENL)

(iii} Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances:

Financial year o g et st - Total.

Nature of transactions with Related Parties

Service charges expense 31-Mar-17 75.00 - 75.00
31-Mar-16 40.00 - 40.00

Interest expense 31-Mar-17 - 16.00 16.00
31-Mar-16 - 342 342

Equity contribution 31-Mar-17 - - -
31-Mar-16 50.00 - 50.00

Loan taken 31-Mar-17 - - -
31-Mar-16 - 200.00 200.00

QOutstanding balances

Payable 31-Mar-17 - 217.82 217.82

31-Mar-16 40.00 203,42 243,42

(iv) Terms & conditions:

The transactions with related parties, including service charges/ interest expense, are made on terms which are at arm’s
length after taking into consideration market considerations, external benchmarks and adjustment thereof. The
outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.
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J. C. BHALLA & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

BRANCH OFFICE : B-5, SECTOR-8, NOIDA - 201301 (U.P.)
TEL. : 91 - 120 - 4241000, FAX : 91 -~ 11 - 4241007
E-MAIL : taxald@vsni.com

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of Triveni Sugar Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Triveni Sugar
Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2017, the
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement
of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(herein after referred to as “Ind AS financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
8 P Yy

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind A5)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records n
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Com pany
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularitics; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements
based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under

&4 pl"()VlSl()ﬂo' Oj t}!(_ /\Ct Etrld {].1@ I{U]C\) H1EILIQ th(?r(_‘und(‘.l'.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement,

Anaudit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control
relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made
by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind
AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required
by the Actin the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the
state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at March 31, 2017, and its loss
(financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the
Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the
paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to

the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flows
and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;




(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with
relevant rule issued thereunder;

(e} on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2017 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(fy with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in “ Annexure B”; and

(g} with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have pending litigation which would impact its
financial position;

if}y The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

ili) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv) The Company neither held nor dealt in specified bank notes during the
period the November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016 & the same in
accordance with the books of accounts maintained by the Company. Refer
Note 21 to be Ind AS financial statements.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111N

/A

udhir Mallick)
Partner
Membership No. 80051

Place: Noida (U.I?)
Date : MGyH)«Qm"@ ,



Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in Paragraph 1 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date under the
heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” to the members of
Triveni Sugar Limited on the Ind AS financial statements as of and for the year ended
on March 31, 2017.

1.

Since the Company does not have any fixed assets with it, the provisions of
clauses (i) to (iii) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016
are not applicable to the Company.

Since the Company does not have any inventories of finished goods, stores,
spare parts & raw materials, the provisions of clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the
Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion
the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year.
Accordingly, clauses (jii} (a), (iii) (b) & (iii) (c) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company for the current
year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion
the Company has not advanced any loan, investment, guarantee or security to
any person as specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, provisions of clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company for the current
year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the
provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under during the year.

As per the information & explanation given to us, the Company is not required
to maintain cost record under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company. '

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income tax, Sales Tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of
Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues to the extent
applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us,
no undisputed amounts in respect of statutory dues were in arrears as at
March 31, 2017 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.




9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us there were no dues
of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value
Added Tax and other statutory dues, which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
borrowed any amount from financial institution, bank, government or debenture
holder, therefore, the question of default in repayment of the dues does not arise.

According to the information and explanation given to us, there was no money
raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer nor any term loan was
taken by the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not
paid any managerial remuneration during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xii)
of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, there were no transactions with the
related parties during the year within the meaning of sections 177 and 188 of the
Act. Details of transactions with the related parties have been disclosed in the
Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us, the company has not
made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debenture during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
(xiv) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xv) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable.




16. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act 1934.

For 1.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 001111N

Sy

udhir Mallick)
Partner
Membership No. 80051

Place: Noida (U.P.)
Date : May H/%Oi"% .




Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Triveni Sugar
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For J.C. Bhalla & Co.
Chartered Accountgnts TaHAL
Figm Regn. No. 00F]111N Q,f’ S "'S ;

(Stdhir Mallick)
Partner

Membership No. 80051
Place: Noida (U.P.)
Date : May %t} 2017




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Potbarie Sheet as af March 31, 2

RN

RS LR RS

AS S
Current assels
Financial assets
i.  Cash and cash equivalents 2 () #5.23 12082 265.02
ii.  Bank balances ether than cash and cash equivalents 2(b) 107.38 150.00 -
i,  Loeans 3 - - 200,00
iv, Other financial assots 4 532 6.49 5.24
‘Fotal current assels 197.93 283.31 470,31
Total assets 197,93 283.31 470.31
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 5 50000 §00.00 500.00
Other equity 6 (316.39) (229.40) (108.34)
Total equity 183,61 270.60 391.66
LIABILITIES
Current Jiabilities
Finaneial liabilities
i. Trade payables 7 11.50 11.45 72,65
Other current labilities 8 ~ - G.00
Lncome tax Habilities {ne) 9 2.82 1.26 -
‘Twtal current Habilities 14.32 12.71 78.65
Total liabilities 14.32 1271 78.65
Total equity and liabilities 197.93 283.31 47(3,31

The accompanying notes 1 to 24 form an integral parl of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

Yor 1.C.Bhalla & Company
Chartered Accountants

irm's registration number : GO111TN
Sudhir Mallic .

Parlner
Membership No. 80051

Place : Noida {U.1)

Date :May [ g)Qo V.

Foryind on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Sugar Limited

v

5. 5. Walia
Director

O 02946589

Debajit Bagchi
Director

ot

R ENARP L




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Statepent of profitand loss for the year ended March 31, 2017
. .

L T N BT T Tr] DTS P it
[EETETE LT E R T !.“Ei':i»:r“n‘f\ sttifein ity nige gladegdl

Olher income 16 9.8% 18.38
‘Fotal income . 9.89 18.38
Expensges

Finance costs 11 - .30
Other expenses 12 93.93 127.72
Total expenses 93,93 134,08
Loss before tax (84.04) (215,70}
Tax exponse:

= Current tax 13 2.95 5.36
« Deferred lax 13 - -
Tolal tax expense 295 536
T.oss for the year (86.99) (121.06)

Other comprehensive income

A (i} Hems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
A (i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit & loss - -
B{l) Nems that may be reclassificd to profit or toss -
B {ii) Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit & loss -

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - W

Total comprehensive income for the year ) (86.99) (121.06)

Earnings/(loss) per equity share of T1 each ]
Basic 14 0.17) {0.24)
Piluted 14 (0.17) (0.24)

The accompanying notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalfl of the Board of Directors of Triveni Sugar Limited
Chartered Accountants -
Bftm's registration number J001111IN
~t
LS. | /}L
Sudhir Mallick Drebajit Bagehi 8. 8, Walia
Patiner Directpr Director

Membership No. 80051

o e gy
ey, @ -
Place : Noida (U.P)) ,aﬂm‘?\:\\ :DT/"-? o oKL E 3 36 & g@‘g «éﬁa{"} %CE

Date :May\LQm




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Staternent of changes i equity for the vear ended March 31, 2017

AN meronl s in W

I aadess ofliraice i)

A, Equity share capital

Equity shares of T1 cach issued, subscribed and futly paid up

sat1 April 2015
Changes in equity share capital
As at 31 March 2016 500,00
Changes in equity share capital

As at 31 March 2017 500.00

B, Other equity

alance as a pri ‘ (1) o ‘ {108.34)
Loss for the year (121.06) {121.06)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax “ -
Tolal comprehensive income for the year {121.00) {121.06)
Balance as at 31 March 2016 (229.40) (229.40)
Loss for the year (86.99) (86.99)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year {86.99) (86.99)
Balance as at 31 March 2017 £{316.,39) (316.39)
The accompanying notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For ).C.Bhalla & Company for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of riveni Sugar Limited
Chartered Accountants

irm's registration nughber : 0011T1N /

- )
/;L AL ¢
Sudhir Mallick "y Debajit Bagehi S. 5. Walia
Pariner Direcfor Director

Membership No. 80051

o T # .sj“"’{:’
Dir 0X56N 20 0o 29654

Place : Noida (ULP)
Date : {viq
W L'{O\"}- .




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

statement of cash flows for the vear eeded March 31, 2007

(AN aniponrds e thowsds . ndess athieradse stitod)

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before lax {84.04) (115.70%
Adjustments for

Inierest income {9.89) {(18.38)

Finance costs - 6.306
Working capilal adjustments :

Change in trade payables 0.05 (67.20)
Cash used in operations (93.88) (194.92)
Income tax paid {1.39) (4.10)
Net cash outflow from operating activities {95.27) (199.02)

Cash flows from investing activities

Fixed deposits with banks 42.62 {150.00)
Repayment of joan given - 200.00
Interest received _ 11.06 17.18
Net cash inflow from investing activities 53.68 67.18

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid - (6.36}
Net cash outflow from financing activities ' - (6.36)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (41.59) (138.20)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 2 {a)) 126.82 265.02
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 2 (a)} 85.23 126.82

The accompanying notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For J.C.Bhalla & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Sugar Limited

Chartered Accountants
yooz

Ejrm's registration Tmber :
.. - - :Debaj Bagchi 5. 8. Walia

fe
Directoy Director

—
oo 2965 gi}?ﬁ

Sudhir Mallick
Partner
Membership No. 80051

Place : Noida (U.P.) S THN @ 256130
Date :May \) 201,




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Corporate information

Triveni Sugar Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in

india. The Holding Company, Triveni lingineering & Industries Limited owns 99.99% of equily share
capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at A-44, Hosiery Complex, Phasc
il extension, Notda, Uttar Pradesh- 201305,

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these

financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(@)

Basis of preparation and presentation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements up to year ended 31 March 2016 were prepared in accordance with the
accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard)} Rules, 2006 (as
amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act {previous GAAP or Indian GAAP),

These financial statements are the first financial statements of the Company under Ind A5, The
date of transition to Ind AS is 1 April 2015. Refer note 22 for the details of first-time adoption
exemptions availed by the Company and an explanation of transition from previous GAAP to
Ind AS.

{(if} Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenue is from interest income. Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

{(d) Income tax

(e)

{£)

The Income tax lability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed af
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (fegal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertaintics
surrounding the obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is
measured at the present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement
will be recetved and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial assets
(i) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
* those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
‘and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

(ii} Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the casc
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs thal are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

« Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of confractual cash flows where thosc
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

*  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the asscts’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCL

*  Fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVTOCT are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its financial
assets carried al amortised cost and FVTOCT debt instruments.

{(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when
* the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
* retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

{g) Tinancial liabilities and equity instruments

(i)

i
e

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabikitics
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of ifs liabilities.

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categorics:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
+ those measured at amortised cost,

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial Hability is held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of

-subsequent accounting periods.




TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

{ii} Measurement
LEquity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transaction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial liability at its fair value net of, in the
case of a financial liability not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs of financial
liability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on the classification of financial
Habilities, There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial
Habilities:

* Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FV'I'PE,
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial
Habilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

* Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods, The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is nol
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

(iti) Derecognition
Equity instruments
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss,

(h) Offsetting financial instruments _
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.
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» TRIVENI SUGAR LIMITED

e Dinnnciad statemends

for the year ended March 3, 7

7,
i

Note 15: Relaled party transactions

(i) Related parties where control exists
(a} Triveni Engineering & Indusiries Limited {(Holding Company) (1EIL)

ii) Related parties with whom iransactions have taken place :
| I
(a} Holding company
Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL)

(b) Fellow Subsidiaries
Triveni Entertainment Limiited {TENL)
Trivend Energy Systems Limited (TESL)
Triveni Engineering Limited (TEL)

(iti) Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances:

H:o.!dlng. Ce mp.m);. e Fellow Subsidiaries

Financial year Total

Nature of transactions with Related Parties
Service charges expense 31-Mar-17 68.95 - - - 68.95
31-Mar-16 6836 - - - 68.36
Interest expense 31-Mar-17 - - - - -
31-Mar-16 - 5.92 - - 592
Inlerest income 31-Mar-17 B " - - -
31-Mar-16 - 3.03 3,03 6.06
Loan taken 31-Mar-17 - - - - -
31-Mar-16 - 300.00 - - 300.00
Qutstanding balances
Receivable 31-Mar-17 - - - - -
31-Mar-16 - - “ - -
01-Apr-15 - - 102.64 102.64 205,28
Payable 31-Mar-17 - - - - -
31-Mar-16 - - - " -
01-Apr-15 61.42 - - - 61.42

(iv} Terms & conditions:

The transactions with related parties, including establishment charges/ interest expense/ interest income, are made on terms which are at arm’s length after

taking into consideration market consideratigns, external benchmarks and adjustment thereof, The cutstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and
settlement occurs in cash,
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Chitresh Gupta & Associates

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Triveni Entertainment Limited

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Triveni Entertainment Limited
(“the Company”}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (inctuding other comprehensive income), the statement of Cash Flow Statement and the
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “Ind AS financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rutes issued thereunder.,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; setection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor’s Responsibility
QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be inctuded in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate it the circumstances.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateﬁess of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements,

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the exptanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principtes generally accepted
in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at March 31,

2017, and its loss { financial performance including other comprehensive income ), its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other L.egal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order,

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a} we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flows and the
statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account; ‘

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued thereunder;

e} on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2017
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31,2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f} with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in

“Annexure B”; and
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g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company has disctoéed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Ind AS financial statements- Refer Note No. 22 to the Ind AS financial statements;

II. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

Iv. The Company has provided requisite disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements as
regards its holding and dealings in Specified Bank Notes as defined in the Notification
S.0. 3407(E) dated 8thNovember, 2016 of the Ministry of Finance, during the period
from 8th November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016. Based on audit procedures
performed and the representations provided to us by the management we report that
the disclosures are in accordance with the books of account maintained by the
Company. Refer Note No. 24 to the Ind AS financial statements.

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 017079N

- e

CA. Chitresh Gupta
Partner
Membership no.: 098247

Place : Noida (U.P.)
Date: 11.05.2017




1.

Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report
Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
of our report of even date

{a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets included under Investment Property as disclosed in Note No. 2 to the Ind
AS financial statements.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year. As explained to
us, no discrepancy was noticed on such verification as compared to the book records. In our opinion
the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its
activities.

(c} According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of examination of the
title deed and other relevant records provided to us evidencing the title, we report that the title
deed of the immovable property is held in the name of the Company.

The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in
the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iif)(a),
ctause 3{ifi}(b} and clause 3{iii)(c)of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided any guarantees or security
hence reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable te the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not required to maintain any cost records under sub-section (1} of Section 148 of the
Act,

{(a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Income-Tax with the
appropriate authority. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company’s
operations did not give rise to any dues on account of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Excise Duty, Value added tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues. There are no undisputed amounts outstanding and payable as at March 31, 2017 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

{b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of Income-Tax, Sales
Tax, Service Tax , Duty of Customs, Excise Duty and Value added tax as at March 31, 2017 on account,
of any dispute except as under:

Name of Statute Nature Assessment Amount in Forum where
of Due Year Dispute is pending
Income Tax Act,1961 Income Tax 1993-94 2,83,065 Assessing Officer
Income Tax Act,1961 income Tax 1999-00 5,331 Assessing Officer
Income Tax Act, 1961 income Tax 2001-02 46,203 Assessing Officer
income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 2001-02 1,13,508 Assessing Officer




10.

1

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from Financial institutions, Banks and
Government and has not issued any debentures. Hence reporting under clause 3({viii) of the Order is
not appticable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Short term loans raised during the year were applied
for the purposes for which they were raised.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with generally accepted auditing practice in India and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud on or by the Company,
noticed or reported during the year, nor have been informed of such case by the management.

. According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records

of the Company, the Company has not paid/provided for managerial remuneration during the year.
Accordingty, reporting under clause 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards,

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him,

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act
1934.

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 017079N

Qﬁt&ré{& Gupta 7 ,f:

Partner \
Membership no.: 098247
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Place : Noida (U.P.}
Date: 11.05,2017




Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Triveni Entertainment
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal controt over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of india .These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
inctuding adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of india and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10} of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of internal Financiat Controls and, both issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internat
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
internal financiat controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evatuating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financiat controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements. :




Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financiat Reporting

Because of the inherent timitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internat
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

QOpinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financiat controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. :

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 017079N
CA. Chitresh Gupta

Partner
Membership no.; 098247

Place : Noida (U.P.)
Date: 11.05.2017
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ASSBETS
. Non-current assets
Investment property 2 38,336.70 38,336.70 -
Inceme tax assels (net) 3 69.04 6:1.65 118,50
Other non-current assels 4 " - 20,600,00
Total non-current assets 38,405.74 38,401.35 20,118,50
Current assets
Financial assets
i, Cashand cash equivalents 5 (a) 118.57 116.63 2,381.87
ii. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 5{b) 4,323.81 4,493.55 3,400.00
iii. Loans 6 1,550.00 1,550,006 -
iv, Other financial assets 7 558.30 188.43 384,48
‘Total current assets 6,550.68 6,348.61 6,166.35
Total assets 44,956.42 44,749.96 26,284.85
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 8 28,700.00 28,700.00 28,700.00
Other equity 9 (2,081.40) (2,288.81) (2,438,273
Total equity 26,618.60 26,411.19 26,261.73
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i.  Trade payables 10 14.38 15.33 22,62
ii.  Other financial liabilities 11 18,323.44 18,323.44 -
Cither current Habilities 12 - - 0.50
Total current liabilities 18,337.82 18,338.77 2312
Total liabilities 18,337.82 18,338.77 23.12
Total equity and liabilities 44,956.42 44,749.96 26,284.85

The accompanying notes 1 to 27 forim an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
irm's reglstlatlon number : 017079N

Chitresh upta

Partner

of the Board of Directors of Friveni Entertainment Limited

‘Buresh Taneja Debalit Bagchi

Director Directpr

Membership No. 98247 0 P 28R L 0% PR

Place : Neida (U.P)
Date : jy{e¢ | Lo I
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Other income 13 472,46 o 437,17
Total income o _ _ 472.46 43717
Expenses

Other expenses 14 176.70 163.30
Total expenses _ _ 176,70 193.30
Profit before tax 295,76 243.87
Tax expense:

- Carrent lax 15 88.35 94.41
- Deferred tax 15 ) - -
Tolal tax expense _ 88,35 94.41
Profit for the year 207.41 149.46
Other comprehensive income

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
A (ily Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified Lo profit & loss - -
B (i) Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
B (i) Income tax relaling to items that may be reclassified to profit & loss - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Tolal comprehensive income for the year 207.41 149.46

Earnings per equity share of ¥ 10 each

Basic 16 0.07 0.05
Diluted 16 .07 .05

The accompanying notes 1 to 27 [orm an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date atlached

for Chitresh Gupta & Associates and on behalfl of the Boeard of Directors of {riveni Entertainment Limited

Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration number : 017079N
-

Chitresh Gupta
Partner
Membership No, 98247

©38E 1R

e SEPIS I L.
Place : Noida (L.P.) S

ey
Date - F I S (b‘\b‘;cﬁ
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TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended Moareh 31, 2017

(A mpennds i O Hotsainds, nitdess olleraise 26ded)

A, Lquity share capital

Liquity shares of ¥ 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

As at’l April 2015 28,700.00
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31 March 2016 28,700.00
Changes in equity share capital s
As at 31 March 2017 28,700.00

B, Other equity

Balance as at 1 April 2015 (2,438.27) (2,438.27)
Profit for the year 149.46 149.46
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 149.46 149.46
Balance as at 31 March 2016 _ (2,288.81) (2,288.81)
Profit for the year 207 41 207.41
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 207.41 207.41
Balance as at 31 March 2017 {2,081.40 (2,081.40)

The accompanying notes 1 te 27 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For

Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration number : 017079N
CL kel

Chitresh Gupta " Supksh Taneja Debalit Bagchi

Partner Director Directior
Membership No. 98247

on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Entertainment Limited

0156132
Place : Noida {(U.P.)
Date : 43 fog b7
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Statement of cash fTows for the year encled Mareh 31, 2007

CA et b (i thonsmnds, naless ollviise dited)

Cash flows from operating activities

» [Profit before tax 29576 243.87
Adjustments for
Interest income (472.46) (437.17)
Working capital adjustments
Change in trade payables (0.95) (7.29)
Change in financial assets 169.74 {2,643.55)
Change in other liabilities - (0.50)
Cash used in operations (7.91) {2,844.64)
Income tax paid (92.74) (40.56)
Net cash cutflow from operating activities (100,65} {2,885.20

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of investment properties - (13.26)
Interest received 102.59 633,22
Net cash inflow from investing activities 102.59 619.96

Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1.94 (2.265.24)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 5 (a)) 116.63 2,381.87
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {refer note 5 (a)) 118.57 116.63

The accompanying notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For agd on behalf of the Board of Directors of Triveni Entertainment Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number : 017079N

CL N Ui& /

Chitresh Gupta Sufifesh Taneja Debsjit Bagchi
Partner Director Diredtor

Membership No. 98247 Ry r N X DLEE 3L

Place : Noida (U.P.)
Date : ptlost2ot



TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Corporate information

Triveni Entertainment Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and
domicited in India. The Holding Company, Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited owns 100% of
equity share capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at Grand Plaza, 104,
1+ floor, 99, Old Rajinder Nagar Market, New Delhi- 110060,

Note 1: Significant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these

financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to alf the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation and presentation
(i) Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act,

The financial statements up to year ended 31 March 2016 were prepared in accordance with the
accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as
amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP).

These financial statements are the first financial statements of the Company under Ind AS. The
date of transition to Ind AS is 1 April 2015, Refer note 25 for the details of first-time adoption

exemptions availed by the Company and an explanation of transition from previous GAAP to
Ind AS.

(i) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, Historical cost is
prep
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

(b) Revenue recognition
The Company’s revenue is from interest income. Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Inferest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

{c} Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

FPayments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are
red to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(d)

(f)

inflationary cost increases in which case lease expenses are charged to profit or loss on the basis of
actual payments to the lessors.

Income tax

The Income tax liability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as
imvestment property. Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the
asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period
in which the property is derecognised.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as stated in Schedule II along with residual values of 5%.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is
measured at the present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement
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TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(g} Financial assets
(i) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
* those measured at amortised cost,

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

(i) Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for

managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

* Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that ts subsequently measured at amortised cost is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

* Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCL

* Fair value through profif or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss,

(iif} Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments,

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when
* the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
* retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.




TRIVENI ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(h} Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(®

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities,

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
* those measured at amortised cost.

Financial labilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL, other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the ernd of
subsequent accounting periods.

Measurement

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transaction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial liability at its fair value net of, in the
case of a financial liability not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs of financial
liability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial Habilities depends on the classification of financial

liabilities. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial
liabilities:

* Fair value through profit or loss {(FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss,

* Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at armortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(iii} Derecognition
Equity instruments
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty.
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Note 2 investmend property

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-1 6 O1-Api

Gross carrying amount

. 38,336,710

Opening gross carrying amount 38,330.70
JAdditions
Deletions

Closing gross carrying amount 38,336.70 38,336,720

Accumulaied depreciation and impairment
Opening accumulated depreciation and impairmest
Deprecialion charge/impairment losses

Closing accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net carrying amoeunt

36,71 38,336,770 N

o

#,

[

(i) Description about Investment properlies
The Company’s investment properties consist of parcel of land at Dibai, District Bulandshahar {Uttar Pradesh), India.

{ii) Amount recognised in stalement of profit & toss
There is ne amount related to investment properly which is recognised in statement of profit & loss (31 March 2076: ¥ Nil)

(iify Restrictions on realisability arul contractual obligations

The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment property and ne conlraclueal obligations to either purchase, construct or develop investment prapuorty or for
repairs, mainlenance and enhancements.

{iv) Fair value

‘The investment property owned by the Company 3s situated in the vicinity of sugarcane growings arcas. The property was purchased in the yeay 2015-16 at the civcle rate (rom (e
Iolding, Company. In view of slowdown in real estate and industiial activilies, the fair value camnot be delermined realistically in the absence of transactions of similar properties
(including size} in the vicinity of the subject property.

Note 3: Income tax balances

31-Mar-17 | 31-Mar-16 ﬂl’-ApMS

Income tax asseis
Tax refund receivable (net) 69,04 64,65 118,50

69.04 64.65 158,50

Incore tax liabilities
Pravision far income tax (net)

Note 4: Other assets

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16  0l-Aprs
Current Non- curtent Cutrent Non- current Current Non- current
Capital advances - - - - - 20,000,083
‘Total other assets - - - - - 20,000,00

MNate 5: Cash and bank balances

{a) Cash and cash equivalents

31-Mar-17 3-Mar-16 01-Apr-15

At amortised cost

Balances with banks

- in current accounts 118.53 115.96 2,380.99
Cash on hand 0.04 0.67 0.88
‘T'otal cash and cash equivalents 118.57 116.63 2,381.87

(b} Bank balances othor than cash and cash cgulvalents

3-Mar-17 3-Marl6 Dl-Aprl5

Balances o "@

- in fixed dep 'its{ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ?l 14 l‘ﬁ exceeding three months but upto one year) 4,323,81 4,493.55 3400,00
o &

Total bank befimcos-otherthai'dash and cash equivalents 4,323.81 4,493.55 3,400.00

TETRCE
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Note 0: Lowns

“31-Mard7? ' 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-

Current Non- current Current Nuon- current Current Were cuerent

At amortised cost

Loan ta related parties {refer note 17)
= Unsecared, considered good 1,650.00 . 1,550,046

Total loans 1,550.00 - 1,550.00 - - -

Note 7: Other financial assets

3t-Ma-17 N 31-Mar-16 o Ol-Apras

Cutrent Non- current Cuyrent Mott- current Current Non- current

At amortised cost

Tnterest accrued 558.30 - 188.43 - 384,48 .
Total ether financial assets 558.30 - 188.43

- 3684.48 -

MNote i Bquity share capital

iy — S rrvywrya— S Olr'A.pr:-IS -
Number of shares Amaount Number of shares Amount Number of shares

AUTHORISED

Equily shares of ¥ 10/ each 40,040,000 40,000.00 40,00,000 40,000.00 40,00,000 40,Q08.00,

1SSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID Up
Equity shares of T10/- vach 28,70,000 28,700.00 28,70,000 28,700.00 28,70,000 28,700.00

{i) Movements in cquity share capital

Number of shares

As at T April 2015 28,70,000 28,700
Movement during the year

As at 31 March 2016 28,70,000 28,110
Movement during the year . i
As at 31 March 2017 28,70,000 28,700

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares with a par value of T 10/- per share. The helder of equity shares is enlitied to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays
dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directars is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, {he holders of equity shaves are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Campany, after meeting ajl liabilities and distribution of all
preferential amounts, in propertion to their shareholding,.

{ii) Details of shareholders helding more than 5% shares in the company

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15
Number of shares % holding  Number of shaves % holding Number of shares % holding

Triveni Engineering & Indusiries Limited {Molding

28,70,000 28,70,000 28,70,000 100%
Company)

Note 9: Other equity

31-Mar-17 3i-Mar-16 01-Apr-15
Relained earnings (2,081.40) {2,288.81} (2,438.27)
Total other equity {2,081.40) (2,288.81) (2,438.27)

(i} Retained carnings

Opening Eb T (2,288.81) {2,438.27}
Nel profil forthe yeaz N 20741 149.46
Closing bajance™** "™ _ 171 {2,081.40) (2,288.81)

® 4 LR / ©
The ame @&w i]:né?m d by the company as dividends fo its equity shareholders is determined considering the requirements of the Companies Aci, 2013.
6’!‘,! \}_Q'\
$reg posl
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Note Uk Trade payables

3i-Mar-17 CAL-Mar6 O1-Apr-15

Current Non- currentd Current Non- current Current
Trade payiblos (st amorlised cost)

- Tola} cnelstanding dues of micto enterprises anc
small enferprises {refer nole 23) : ) !

- Tolal catstanding dues of creditors other than 1438 1533 260
micro enferprises and smal enterprisos - - 2L - 2,62

Nuon- current

Total trade payables 14.38 - 15.33 - 22.62

Nuote 11: Other financial Habiities

At-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15

Current M- easrent Current Non- current Current

At amortised cost

Capital creditors 18,323.44 - 1832344 - ~

Mon- current

Total other financial iiabilities at amortised cost 18,323.44 - 18,323.44 - -

Note 12: Other liabikities

F1-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 " T H-Apris
Current Non- current Current Non- cuirent Current Nown« current
Statutory remillances - . - - 050 -
Total other liabilities - - . . 0.50 -

Note 13: Other income

3-Mar-17  31-Mar-16|
Interest income from bank deposits 348.46 355.83
Interest income from loans 124.40 81,34
‘Fotal other income 472,46 437,17

Note 14: Other expenses

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Rent 77.00 83.00
Service charges 68,95 68,36,
Legal and professional expenses 13.25 22,31
Payment 1o Auditors (see (i) below} 14.38 14,31
Rales and taxes 2.01 5,08;
Miscellaneous expenses 1.11 0.24
‘Total other expenses 176.70 193.30

{i} Payment to Auditors

" 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Statutory audit fee 14.38 14.3%
Total payment to auditors 14.38 14.31
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Note 15: Incomne tax expense

Income tax recogatsed in profit or Joss

Current tax

Inrespect of the curtent year 88.35 7536

In respect of the prior years ~ 1005
88.35 94.41

Deferced tax - -

‘Total Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 88,35 94,41

Reconcilialion of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Cempany's tax rate: -

Profil before tax 295.76 24587
Income tax expense caleulated al 29.87% (2016: 30,9%) 88.00 7500
Adjustments recogaised in the carrent year in relation to the current tas of prior years . 19408
Total income tax expense recopnised in profit or loss 88.00 94.05

Note 16: Earnings per share

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company [A] 207,41 149.46
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic EPS/ diluted EPS (B3} 28,70,000 28,70,000
Basic earnings per equity share {face value of ¥ 1) per share) | A/ B! 0.07 0.05)
Diluted earningts per equily share (face value of ¥ 10 per share) |[A/B] .07 0.05
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TRIVENT ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

wended Moareh BV,

Mote 17: Related parly transaciions

{i) Retated partles where control exists
{a) Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding Company} {TEIL)

{ii).Related parties with whom bransactions have taken place :
{a) Holding company

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL)

(b) Fellow Subsidiaries
Svastida Projects Limited (SPL)
Triveni Sugar Limited (TSL)
Triveni Indastries Limited (TIL)
Triveni Engineering Limited (TEL)
Triveni Energy Systems Limited (TESL)

{iii) Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances:

Feliow

Financial year = ‘Total
Nature of transactions with Related Parlies
Service charges expense 31-Mar-17 68.95 - - - - . 68.95
31-Mar-16 68.36 - - - - - 68.36
Inderest income 31-Mar-17 - 36.00 - 16.00 36.00 36.00 124.00
31-Mar-16 - 24.00 5.92 342 24.00 24.00 81.34
Investment in property I -Mar-17 - - “ - “ - .
31-Mar-16 38,323.44 “ - - “ - 3832344
Reimburasement of expenses 31-Mar-17 - - - - - . -
31-Mar-16 13.26 - - - - - 13.26
Loan given 31-Mar-17 “ - - - - - -
31-Mar-16 - 450.00 300.60 20000 450.00 450,00 1,850.00
Cutstanding balances
Receivable 31-Mar-17 - 504.00 - 217.82 504,00 504.00 1,729.82
3-Mar-16 - 471.60 - 203,42 471.60 471.60 1,618,22
01-Apr-15 20,000.00 - - - - - 20,000.00
Payable 31-Mar-17 18,323.44 - - - - - 18,323.44
31-Mar-16 18,323.44 - - - - - 18,323.44
01-Apr-15 - - - - - - g

(iv) Terms & conditions:
The lransactions with related parties, including establishment charges/ interest income, are made on terms which are at arm’s length after taking into consideration
markel considerations, external benchmarks and adjustment thereof. The outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. The
Company has net recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties for the year ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016.
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Chitresh Gupta & Associates

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Svastida Projects Limited

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Svastida Projects Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), the statement of Cash Flow Statement and the statement of
changes in equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (herein after referred to as “Ind AS financial statements”),

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit reporf under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

Head Office : U-119A, Shakarpur, New Delhi-110092, Mobile : 99103 67918
Branch Office : LG-C5-24 B, Ansal Plaza (Opp. Dabur India Ltd.), Vaishali, Ghaziabad, U.P., Pin - 201010, NCR, india
Phone: +91- 120 - 4121942, E-mail: gupta_chitresh@yahoo.in

Chartered Accountants




An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting poticies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the Ind AS financiat statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
forour audit opinicn on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India including the ind AS, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at March 31,
2017, and its loss { financial performance including other comprehensive income ), its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure Aa
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flows and the
statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued thereunder;

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2017
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31,2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;




f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
in“Annexure B”; and

= g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given 1o us:

I.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

lll.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

IV. The Company has neither held nor dealt in Specified Bank Notes as defined in the
Notification S.0. 3407(E) dated 8thNovember, 2016 of the Ministry of Finance, during
the period from 8th November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016. Based on audit
procedures performed and the representations provided to us by the management we
report that the disclosures are in accordance with the books of account maintained by
the Company. Refer Note No. 24 to the Ind AS financial statements.

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.; 017079~

APl & g

CA. Chitresh Gupta ~+5Tzny
Partner

Membership no.: 098247 \, &
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Place : Noida (U.P.)
Date: 11.05.2017




Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report
Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
of our report of even date

—

10,

The Company does not have any fixed assets and hence reporting under clause 3(i) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in
the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii){a),
clause 3(iii}(b} and clause 3(iii){c)of the Order is not appticable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided any guarantees or security
hence reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not required to maintain any cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the
Act.

{(a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Income-Tax with the
appropriate authority According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company’s
operation did not give rise to any dues on account of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Excise Duty, Value added tax, Cess and other materiat
statutory dues. There are no undisputed amounts outstanding and payable as at March 31,2017 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b} According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of Income-Tax, Sales
Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Excise Duty and Value added tax as at March 31,2017on account
of any dispute.

The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from Financial Institutions, Banks and
Government and has not issued any debentures. Hence reporting under c_iause 3{viii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Short term loans raised during the year were applied
for the purposes for which they were raised.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with generally accepted auditing practice in India and according to the information and
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11,

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud on or by the Company,
noticed or reported during the year, nor have been informed of such case by the management,

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not paid/provided for managerial remuneration during the year,
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fuily or partly convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him .

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act
1934,

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 017079N.

CA. Chitresh Gupta
Partner
Membership no.: 098247

Lo

Place : Noida (U.P.)
Date: 11.05.2017




Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Svastida Projects Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the ind AS financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for estabtishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India .These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internat financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™} and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adegquacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process desighed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principtes.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance




with generally accepted accounting principtes, and'that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internat
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of india.

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

CA. Chitresh Gupta
Partner
Membership no.: 098247

Ptace : Noida (U.P.)
Date: 11.05.2017
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The accompanying notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration number : (07079N
ot

Chitresh Gupta
Partner
Membership No. 98247

Place : Noida (U.P)
Date : gggﬁ,gfigﬁ"}

ABSETS
Neon-current assets
Income tax assels (net) 2 3,30 216 -
Total non-current assets 3.30 2.16 -
Current assels
Financial assets
i, Cashand cash equivalents 3 (a} 119.10 107.54 48.73
ii.  Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3(b) 107.37 200.00 -
ifi.  Other financial assels 4 4.15 8.65 -
Other current assels 5 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00
Total curvent assels 20,230.62 20,316,119 20,048,73
'J'otal assets 20,233.92 20,318.35 20,048.73
BEQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BEoquity
Equity share capital 6 20,500.00 20,500.00 20,500.60
Other equity 7 (781.57) (664.70) (529.92)
Total equity 19,718.43 19,835.30 19,970,08
LIABILITIES
Current Habilities
Financial Habilities
i.  Borrowings 8 450.00 450.00 -
il.  Trade payables g 11.50 1145 72.65
iii. Other financial liabilities 16 53,499 21,60 -
Other current liabilities i1 - - 6,00
Total current liabilities 515.49 483.05 78.65
'f‘utal liabilities 515.49 483.05 78.65
Total equity and liabilities 20,233.92 20,318.35 20,{]4&13‘

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Svastida Projects Limited

s

Satvinder Singh Walia
Director

Drger §B R0 6Y 2%

Debajit Bagehi
Director

ors

st 23




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

shateent of profit and toss for the vear ended dManch 31, 2017
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Other income _ 12 11.39 10.82

Total income 11,39 .82

lixpenses

Finance costs 13 36.00 24.57

Other expenses 14 92,26 120,40

Total expenses 128.26 144.97

Loss before tax (116.87) (134.15)

Tax expense;

- Current tax 15 - .63

- Deferred lax 15 - -

Total tax expense - (.63

Loss for the year {11687} {13478}

Other comprehensive income

A () Hems that will not be reclassified 10 profit or loss - - :
A (i) Income tax relating Lo items that will not be reclassified to profit & loss - - ;
B i} ltems thal may be reclassified to profit or loss -
B (i) Income tax refating to items that may be reclassified to profit & loss - :
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (116.87) (134.78) ‘
Earnings/{loss) per equity share of T 1 each

Basic 16 (0.01) Q.01

Dijuted i6 (0.01) 0.01}

The accompanying notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directoys of Svastida Projects Limited

Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration numberg (17079N
et ’

Chitresh Gupta tvinder Singh Walia Debajlt Bagchi

Pariner Director Directdr

Membership No, 98247 Mmeg it Re

gy 2 GOLAE LTS
Place : Noida (U.P.) '

Date ”é@‘:’; %1&3 3




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Stetenient of changes inequity for the vomr eoded Mareh 31 2007

foasyziieay YRS i sy o S IY
. s gl fhepeains mdess ofioraiee dtaded

A. Equity share capital

. Equity shares of ¥ 1 cach issoed, subscribed and fully paid up

20,500.00
Changes In equity share capital -
As at 31 March 2016 _ 20,500.00
Changes in equity share capita} -
As at 31 March 2017 20,500.00
B. Other equity

Balance as at 1 Aprit 2015 T T ) S T (529.92) (529.92)
Loss for the year (134.78) (134.78)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (134.73) ('134..78)
Balance as at 31 March 2016 (664.70) (664.70)
Loss (or the year {116.87) (116.87)
Other comprehensive incone, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (116.87) (116.87)
Balance as at 31 March 2017 (781.57) {781.57)

The accompanying notes 1 1o 27 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration number : §17079N ~f

Chitresh Gupta / Satvinder Singh Walia Debdjit Bagchi

Partner Director Divector

Membership No., 98247 ] S
P & e o 35 6T ET

Svastida Projects Limiled

o356t Ine
Place : Noida (U.F.)

Date : Hi*g 52@3%"?




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Statement of cash Hows for the year ended March 31, 2017

(A aponints & Homsands, wnless oifieriodse sfalid

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before tax (116.87} (13415}
Adjustments for

Interest income {11.39 (10.82)

Finance costs 36.00 24,57
Working capital adjustments :

Change in trade payables 0.05 (61.20)

Change in financial assets 92.63 (200.00)

Change in other Habilities - (6,00}
Cash generated from f{used in) operations 0.42 (387.60)
Income tax paid _ (1.14) (2.79)
Nel cash outflow from operating activities {0.72) (390.39)

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 15,89

217
‘Net cash inflow from investing activities 15.89 2,17
Cash flows from financing activities
Praceeds from short term borrowings - 450.00
Interest paid (3.61) (2.97)
Net cash inflow/(outfiow) from financing activities (3.61) 447.03
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 11.56 58.81
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 3 (a)) 107.54 45.73
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 3 (a)) 119.10 107.54
The accompanying notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Chitresh Gupta & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Svastida Projecis Limitec
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number : (17079N
cr ke sl " /

Chitresh Gupta = Satvinder Singh Walia Debajit Bagchi
Partner Director Dirdctor
Membership No. 98247 . . 5 4

P S B SWIGEEEY 0lséi3lo

@

Place : Noida (UF.) %

Date : Hé(}f’} 1ot




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Corporate information

Svastida Projects Limited (“the Company”) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled
in India. The Holding Company, Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited owns 100% of equity share
capital of the Company. The registered office of the Company is located at A-44, Hosiery Complex, Phase
I extension, Noida, Uttar Pradesh- 201305,

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopled in the preparation of these
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation and presentation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015} and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements up to year ended 31 March 2016 were prepared in accordance with the
accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as
amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP).

These financial statements are the first financial statements of the Company under Ind AS. The
date of transition to Ind AS is 1 April 2015. Refer note 25 for the details of first-time adoption

exemptions availed by the Company and an explanation of transition from previous GAAP to
Ind AS.

{(ii} Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenue is from interest income. Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing cost
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wsed in the period in which they are incurred.
gEEedin e y

&

Ef O No :
Sh ges2dl )¢
o /
'%*

(;.: /
,./ g{‘b /
£ 5
Loy M
rod




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

{d) Income lax

(e)

()

The Income tax liability is provided in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilitics in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Income tax and deferred tax are measured on the basis of the tax rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
direcily in equity respectively.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, provision is
measured at the present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial assets
(i) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
* those to be measured subsequently at fair value {either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
* those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

(1) Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(iv)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurernent
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

*  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is

recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

* Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assels’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCH.

*» Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVTOCT are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Empairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the Company apphlies expected credit loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when
* the Company has transferred the rigits to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
* retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

(g) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(i)

Classification

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities i
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the

definitions of a financtal liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:
*+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
* those measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it
-other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(ii) Measurement
Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transaction
cost of equity transactions shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity.

Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial liability at ifs fair value net of, in the
case of a financial liability not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs of financial
liability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss,

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on the classification of financial

liabilities. There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financtal
liabilities:

»  Fair value through profit or foss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial
liabilittes at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

+  Amortised cost: Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as
at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The
carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost
are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

{(iii) Derecognition
Equity instruments
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recoghised and deducted directly in

equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial Hability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

(h) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.
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VH PENALTIES/PUNISIIMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES
Type Scction of the |Brief Details of Awthority  |Appeall made if any
Companices Description  [Penally/Punish [(RIYNCILAY |(give details)
Act ment/Compoun |Court)
ding lees
imposed
A, COMPANY None
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS None
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
C, OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAUL'Y  None
Penalty
Punishiment
Compounding
For ‘Friveni Entertainment Limited
Suresh Taneja Debajit Bagchi
(Dircctor) (Director)

DIN: (0028332

DIN: 02561320




SVASTIDA PROJECTS LIMITED

~otes e the Goanvial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(AT amenodts ine 5 thersands, pnless allierwise staled )

Note 17: Related party transactions

(iy Related parties where control exists
{a) Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (Holding Company) (TEIL)

(ii) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place :
{a) Helding company

Triveni Engineering & Industries Limited (TEIL)

(b) Fellow Subsidiary
Triveni Entertainment Limited (TENL)

(iii) Details of transactions between the Company and related parties and outstanding balances:

Firancial year

Nature of transactions with Related Parties

Service charges expense 31-Mar-17 68.95 - 68.95
31-Mar-16 68.36 - 68.30

Interest expense 31-Mar-17 - 36.00 36.00
31-Mar-16 - 24.00 24.00

Loan taken 31-Mar-17 - - -
31-Mar-16 - 450.00 450.00

Outstanding balances

Receivable 31-Mar-17 20,000.00 - 20,000.00
31-Mar-16 20,000.00 - 20,000.00
01-Apr-15 20,000.00 - 20,000.00
Payable 31-Mar-17 - 504.00 504.00
31-Mar-16 - 471.60 471.60
01-Apr-15 61.42 - 61.42

{iv) Terms & conditions:

The transactions with related parties, including establishment charges/ interest expense, are made on terms which are at
arm'’s length after taking into consideration market considerations, external benchmarks and adjustment thereof. The
outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. The Company has not recorded any
impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties for the year ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March
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